ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 3, 2014
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or John Coghil |
Senat or Bert Stednman

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 25(M.V)

Uging the United States Congress to restore the presunption of
a service connection for Agent Orange exposure to United States
Vet erans who served in the waters defined by and in the airspace
over the conbat zone in Vietnam

- MOVED SCS CSHIJR 25( STA) OUT OF COMM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 209
"An Act prohibiting snoking in certain |locations; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 209( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 366(JUD)

"An Act relating to reporting an involuntary nental health
commitnment to the National Instant Crimnal Background Check
System relating to the sealing of records of nental health
proceedings; and relating to relief froma disability resulting
from an involuntary commtnent or an adjudication of nental
illness or nental inconpetence."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 25

SHORT TITLE: VI ETNAM VETS: SERVI CE- RELATED DI SEASES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2014



02/ 03/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 03/ 14 (H M.V

02/ 18/ 14 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 18/ 14 (H Moved CSHIR 25(M.V) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 18/ 14 (H M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 19/ 14 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 7DP

02/ 19/ 14 (H DP: GRUENBERG, H GG NS, SADDLER,
REI NBOLD, HUGHES, LEDOUX, FOSTER

03/ 10/ 14 (H) TRANSM TTED TO ( S)

03/ 10/ 14 (H VERSI ON:  CSHIR 25(M.V)

03/ 12/ 14 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 12/ 14 (S HSS, STA

03/ 19/ 14 (S HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 19/ 14 (S Heard & Held

03/ 19/ 14 (S M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 21/ 14 (S HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 21/ 14 (S Moved CSHIR 25(M.V) CQut of Committee

03/ 21/ 14 (S M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 24/ 14 (S) HSS RPT 2DP 1INR

03/ 24/ 14 (S DP: STEDVAN, MEYER

03/ 24/ 14 (S) NR M CCl CHE

04/ 03/ 14 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: SB 209
SHORT TI TLE. REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) M CCl CHE

02/ 26/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 14 (S) STA, HSS, FIN
04/ 03/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HIR 25.

THOMVAS BROWN, St af f

Represent ati ve LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HIR 25.

RI C DAVI DGE, Chair man
Governnent Affairs

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- Apri |

3, 2014



Vi et nam Vet erans of America

Chapt er 904- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HIR 25.

JOHN PAUL ROSSI E, Executive Director

Bl ue Water Navy Vi et nam Vet erans Associ ati on
Littl eton, Col orado

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HIR 25.

SENATOR PETER M CCl CHE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: SB 209 sponsor.

MARGE STONEKI NG Al aska Director

Aneri can Lung Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposes SB 209 as anended.

DR. ROBERT URATA, M D., volunteer
Anerican Heart Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

ANGELA CARRCLL, owner

A aci er Vapors

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 209 as anended.

BRI AN CATON, owner

Nort hern Li ghts Vapor Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 209 as anended.

| SAAC HOAELL, owner

Col d Vapes 907

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 209.

LARRY HACKENM LLER, representative

Interior Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant & Retailers Association
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposes SB 2009.

JILL LEWS, Deputy Director
Al aska Department of Health and Social Services

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2014



Di vi sion of Public Health

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed departnental questions regarding
SB 209.

TERRY SNYDER, Mat - Su Coor di nat or

Ameri can Cancer Society Cancer Action Network
Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

ELAI NE BUSSE FLOYD, Director

Di vi sion of Environnental Health

Al aska Departnent of Environnental Conservation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed departnental questions regarding
SB 209.

PH L WELSH, Adm ni strator

Si tka Pi oneer Hone

Al aska Pi oneer Hones

Al aska Departnent of Health and Soci al Services

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed departnental questions regarding
SB 209.

BETTY MACTAVI SH, representing herself
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

JOHN PARKER, busi ness owner
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

GARY SUPERMAN, owner

Hunger Hut

Ni ki ski, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 2009.

ANGELO REALE, owner

Real e Vapes

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 209.

ALLEN GRUNIN, representing hinself

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2014



M CHAEL PATTERSQN, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 209.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 02 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, G essel, and Chair Dyson.

9:01: 46 AM
CHAI R DYSON revi ewed the commttee cal endar.

HIR 25-VI ETNAM VETS: SERVI CE- RELATED DI SEASES

CHAI R DYSON announced the consideration of HIR 25. [CSHIR
25(M.V) was before the conmttee.]

9:02: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Al aska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, sponsor of HIR 25, paraphrased the follow ng
sponsor statenent:

HIR 25 is a step towards fixing a bureaucratic |apse
in our treatnment of Vietnam veterans. Currently only
soldiers who had "boots on the ground"” during that
conflict are eligible for benefits related to their
exposure to Agent Orange.

HIR 25 urges the United States Congress to pass HR
543, the Blue Water Navy Vietnam Veterans Act of 2013.
HR 543 anends current conpensation in health care
regul ations to include coverage of the service nenbers
who served in the waters of Vietnam many of whom were
al so exposed to Agent Orange, a fact not recogni zed by
the federal governnent; these brave nen and wonen
served their country honorably and we need to rem nd
Congress of its responsibility to our veterans.

9:04: 03 AM
THOVAS BROWN, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Al aska
State Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, provi ded backgr ound

informati on on HR 543 as fol | ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2014



In 2002, the United States Departnent of Veterans
Affairs (VA) made an administrative policy shift and
changed their regulations concerning Agent O ange
exposure, it was an arbitrary shift with no nedical or
scientific basis.

Uging the passage of HR 543 wuld return the
conpensation that these soldiers earned during the

service for their country. The bill enjoys bipartisan
support in Congress, 174 co-sponsors including our own
Don Young.

In Al aska, we have up to 609 Blue Water Navy veterans
that could be eligible for treatnment for exposure to
Agent Orange and countl ess thousands of others across
the country. The Blue Water Navy, incidentally, is how
Navy and Marine personnel stationed in the offshore
waters of Vietnam are referred to as opposed to the
Brown Water Navy of the inland waters.

Should this legislature pass HIR 25, copies of the
resolution would be distributed to our congressional
del egati on, congressional |eadership, the Secretary of
Veterans Affairs, the Vice President, and President

Qohana.

In conclusion, | would just l|like to say that when
Washi ngton doesn’'t do the right thing, it is our
responsibility to remnd them and fulfill their debt

to our veterans.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if coverage pertains to soldiers who were
not on the ground in Vietnam but were exposed to Agent O ange
because they flew in and brought out injured soldiers covered in
Agent Orange.

MR BROWN replied that was one of the circunstances. Qhers
i nclude nedical personnel who were exposed when they treated
exposed soldiers and Navy personnel stationed offshore who
cl eaned exposed equi pnent .

9:06: 34 AM
CHAIR DYSON said he did not realize that Agent O ange was
transferrabl e from person-to-person.

MR BROM replied it's nore through physical contact from one
contam nated itemto another.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2014



CHAI R DYSON asked if exposure was from chem cal contact and not
froma germ

MR. BROWN answered correct.

CHAI R DYSON asked Representative LeDoux if she had seen Senator
W el echowski's anmendnents.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX replied she may have seen one.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he had one anendnent to present.

CHAIR DYSON asked which version of the bill was before the
commi tt ee.

MR. BROWN answered version U, [28-LS1350\U].

9:08:13 AM

RI C DAVI DGE, Chairman, Government Affairs, Vietnam Veterans of
Aneri ca, Chapter 904- Al aska, Anchorage, Al aska, i ntroduced
hi nmsel f.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Davidge if he had seen Senator
W el echowski 's anmendnent .

MR. DAVI DGE answered yes. He explained that he had worked very
closely wth Senator Welechowski's staff and was very
supportive of the Blue Water Navy resol ution.

CHAI R DYSON noted M. Davidge's history and called attention to
his tirel ess advocacy of veterans.

VMR. DAVIDGE offered the follow ng testinony:

My nane is R ck Davidge, | am chairman of Governnent
Affairs for Vietnam Veterans of Ameri ca- Al aska,
formally National Chairman of Government Affairs.
Representative LeDoux and Senator Welechowski both
have copies of our national |egislative agenda. The
second highest national priority for Vietnam Veterans
of Anerica is what we call addressing the |egacy of
t oxi ¢ exposures, Agent Orange and di oxin.

Unfortunately not all wounds of war are imediately

obvious, either in inmmediate service or in a very
brief of tinme. In fact, we know that nedical synptons

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2014



can begin to develop after decades of exposure. Most
service nenbers don't even know they're being exposed
because they are not unaware of the fact that there is
some sort of toxic material that they are in contact
wi t h. W have specific evidence of pieces of
equi pnent i ncl udi ng t rucks, t anks, pl anes,
helicopters, etc., all have been brought back to the
United States where it had been cleaned by people in
the United States who never went to Vietnam but cane
down with toxic exposure as a result of their exposure
to the pieces of Agent Oange on these pieces of
equipnent. As a nedic in Vietnam in 1965 with the
First Cav., we were totally unaware of the existence
of Agent Orange, obviously it was highly classified.
One of the things that we are trying to do in show ng
the Blue Water Navy problem and by the way, we have a
nunber of Alaska Vietnam veterans who have received
six figure checks as a result of their exposure which
has helped them pay for their extraordinary nedical
demands, all of which are currently being paid for by
private insurance, the state, and nunicipal health
care prograns because they previously did not qualify
for these considerations.

9:10: 46 AM
MR. DAVIDGE continued to explain Agent Orange's inmpact on
Vi et nam vet er ans:

One of the other concerns that we have, this is
relatively new over the last five to ten years, is we
have learned that there is an additional |[egacy,
particularly of dioxin in the Agent Oange exposure
were the progeny of Vietnam vets who were exposed were
effected by Agent Orange in that it changes the
genetic matrix of male sperm and then causes
significant birth defects. The addition of Senator
W el echowski's resolution to this resolution wll
bring that issue as well forward and initiate a
national study by the VA You would think with the
enor mous anmount of noney the VA has to research these
kinds of things, their attention on toxic exposures is
practically non-existent. W have been scream ng at
the VA and at the Departnent of Defense (DOD) to start
payi ng better attention to the wounds created by toxic
exposures. Now the beginning of the current war there
was sonme effort to do that by DOD and kept records of
peopl e who were exposed to burn-pits and these kind of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2014



things. But in the last few years, six years, that has
basically stopped so we don't have that. Trying to
prove that you are were exposed is very difficult. The
nost effective way we have found to prove it is using
the internet where we have a veteran, particularly an
Al askan veteran that we worked with who cane forward,
who has had | eukema for a very long tinme. Leukemia is
one of the nobst promnent illnesses as a result of
toxic exposure to Agent Orange dioxin. W put
everything that we could find from him including
pictures he took while in service, put it on the
internet, and we were able to put together a couple of
affidavits from other people who swore that in fact
this gentl eman was exposed.

MR. DAVIDGE noted that this past week he becane aware of a nan
whose son chanpioned his effort and has just now been recognized
for Agent Orange exposure. He noted that the man's son used the
same kind of approach by using the internet to access pictures,
testinony, and affidavits from ot her people.

9:12: 59 AM
He conti nued:

The state of Alaska, in nunicipal health care and
private health insurance, are the ones that have been
paying for the results of these toxic exposures; these
are direct results of service and particularly in many

cases, combat . The federal gover nment has an
extraordi nary nor al and et hi cal obligation to
recogni ze these wounds of war and begin to pay
attention to them | am very delighted that Senator

Wel echowski and ny friend Gabrielle LeDoux cane
together and put this together because this actually
makes a stronger statenment from the people of Al aska
to Congress and to this Admnistration to recognize
Blue Water Navy and pay attention to the |egacy of
Agent Orange. W have now three generations of
extraordinary birth defects as a result of this
exposure. M. Chairman, there is a personal note, you
have been a long chanpion of veterans in this state
and we salute you sir.

CHAI R DYSON asked him to verify that the Al aska Departnent of
Heal th and Human Services (DHSS) has been taking care of sone of
the toxic exposure issues with sonme of Alaska's vets even
wi t hout the VA's support.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2014



MR. DAVI DGE answer ed yes.

9:15:18 AM

CHAIR DYSON renmarked that he is disappointed with the VA's
reluctance nationwde to treat veterans who present thenselves
with issues that are related to war. He asserted that the
federal governnment is trying to drawthe-curtai n-down on Vietnam
vet erans.

MR. DAVIDGE replied yes and referred to a book, "Waiting for an
Arny to Die." He noted Agent Orange's effect through the progeny
of children and grandchil dren.

9:17: 00 AM

JOHN PAUL ROSSIE, Executive Director, Blue Water Navy Vietnam
Vet erans Association (BWWWA), Littleton, Colorado, explained
t hat BWNVWA has been helping to get the infornmation dissemn nated
to the public and legislators regarding HR 543. He summarized
that BWNWA is trying to right an "adm nistrative wong" that
was put into place.

9:21:18 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked if there were people in the room that wanted
to testify on HIR 25. He asked Representative LeDoux if she
supports Senator W el echowski's amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX answer ed yes.
CHAI R DYSON solicited notion to nove Amendnent 1.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI npved Anendment 1.

9:21:53 AM

CHAI R DYSON found no objection and announced that Anmendnment 1
was adopted. He noted that resolutions submitted to the U S
Congress are not ignored and ultimtely act as an endorsenent
fromthe people of Al aska.

9:23:40 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report HIR 25, 28-LS1350\U as anended,
fromcomittee with individual recomrendati ons and attached zero
fiscal note.

9:24: 00 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2014



CHAI R DYSON announced that w thout objection, SCS CSHIR 25(STA)
has passed from the Senate State Affairs Commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati on and attached zero fiscal note.

9:24:17 AM
CHAI R DYSON decl ared that the commttee will stand at ease.

SB 209- REGULATI ON_OF SMOKI NG

9:25: 06 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that SB 209 was before the commttee. He
remar ked about the gratifying anount of public interest in the
bill. He recounted that his office had received conmunications
from his constituents wth over 80 percent in favor of the
committee doing sonething. He noted that the sponsor's office
has of fered an anendnent to the bill.

9:26: 29 AM
SENATOR PETER M CCICHE, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau
Al aska, provided a sponsor statenent as foll ows:

SB 209 wll provide a snoke-free environnent for nost
enpl oyees in Alaska. Secondhand snoke kills nore
people in the U S. than autonobile accidents, nany
times nore in fact in our great state of Al aska. W
are fortunate here in the Capitol to be spared from
that exposure and that makes it easy to forget the

| arge nunber of Al askans that may still be subject to
secondhand snoke at their workpl ace. This bill
corrects that inequity, but the bill doesn't subtract

from the rights of smokers for their right to choose
their own path, it sinply protects the rights of non-
snokers from the choices of others while they are at
the workplace. W have heard staggering statistics
about the repercussions of the exposure to secondhand
snoke and we have got experts here that will go over
some of those, but please renenber that secondhand
snoke kills five tinmes nore people in the U S each
year than drunk driving and many nore than all of the
conmbi ned highway fatalities. |I find it renmarkable and
it is the reason | feel like it is worthy of having
t hi s discussion.

So, M. Chairman, you probably have figured out in our
short relationship that I ama smaller governnent sort
of guy. You mght be wondering why I am willing to
sponsor this bill in recognition of nmy aversion to any

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2014



unr easonabl e governnment intervention in our personal
lives; but it wasn't an easy decision for ne, but I
have arrived there due to several reasons, it passed

my litmus test of whether or not it fits into
appropriate role of governnent.

9:28: 03 AM
SENATOR M CCI CHE expl ai ned why he was bringing the bill
as follows:

First, it's a public health issue. Just as it

appropriate for governnent to set safety standards

aut onobi | es, el ectrical codes for W ring,

t he

f or war d

is
in
and

requirenents for infant and <child <carrier seats.

Whether or not it's appropriate for the state

to

require safe working conditions free of secondhand

snoke is the discussion here, public safety.

Second, the cost of treating many of the diseases
caused by secondhand snoke are trenmendous. Mny of

those costs are borne by state governnent

and

therefore it is fiscally responsible to take action to

elimnate the cause of these expenses.

Third, many communities and boroughs lack jurisdiction
from passing such a | ocal ordinance, just due to their
lack of jurisdiction. In nost of those cases we serve

as the assenbly of the Unorganized Borough or

we

provide that jurisdiction. Those places |ike Fairbanks
Nort hst ar, Mat - Su, and ny honme borough, Kenai

Peni nsul a.

Finally, for me it's a personal issue and as you know,
|l ess than two years ago when | was nmayor of Sol dotna,
the Snoke Free Alliance came to ne and they talked
about ny dad. My dad was on oxygen the last 12 years
of his life and I am going to e-mail this comittee
the ad later; it's ny father talking about what they

didn't know when he was young and how it resulted

adverse effects to his life. My 5 year old at
time, Sophia, who is now 7, says, 'I am glad you
here, | don't ever want to be w thout ny G andpa

know where ny father is spiritually right now,

in
t he
are
I
but

materially he lives in a little gold box in ny office,

you cone down and visit his cremains if you' d |ike,

he

didn't nmake it nore than a year and half after that.
My father nade his personal choices, but ny siblings

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- Apri

3, 2014



and | didn't. The effects of secondhand snoke, | am
the lucky one, of the other three, they all had
respiratory issues through living through secondhand
snoke effects.

9:30: 16 AM
SENATOR M CCICHE said he will speak to the comrmittee substitute
(CS) and address the changes.

CHAI R DYSON asked which version of the bill should be before the
comm ttee.

SENATOR M CCl CHE answer ed version C.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Senator Mcciche would like the committee
to adopt the CS

SENATOR M CCI CHE answer ed yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked Senator Mcciche first to explain what the
bill acconplishes and then the changes made in the CS

SENATOR M CClI CHE descri bed SB 209 as foll ows:

The bill essentially bans snoking in nost workpl aces
in the state, it provides exenptions from enployer-
approved outside areas away from doors, w ndows and
other wventilation systens. The bill does not ban
snoking, it does not ban the use of e-cigarettes, they
can continue to be used in the areas regular snoking

will be allowed; this is inportant because you are
likely to hear several 'e-cigarette' folks testify
against the bill, <claimng that it wll ban e-
cigarettes, it doesn't, it just asks you to take it
outside. The bill doesn't require enployers to hire or

not hire enpl oyees because they do or do not snoke, it
doesn’ t pr ohi bi t enpl oyers from having stronger
restrictions such as a hospital with a snoke-free
canpus, and it does not prohibit |ocal governnents
from adopting stronger restrictions.

9:32: 57 AM
SENATOR M CClI CHE addressed the CS and noted receiving a video
from constituents who did not speak against the bill, but

strictly against the snoking ban in standal one tobacco shops. He
expl ai ned that standal one tobacco shops are places where snokers
cone to snoke responsibility and noted that children are not

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2014



allowed to enter. He asserted that standal one tobacco shops do
not affect other people and are a worthy exenption.

He explained that the other change allows a nunicipality or
borough, through a local election, to exenpt itself fromall or
part of the law. He cited his background as a former mayor to
allow local control. He said if residents of a conmunity decide
that snoke-free workplaces are not for them they can exenpt
thensel ves. He called attention to snoke-free comunities that
passed the law and liked it: Anchorage, Bethel, Juneau, and
Palmer. He said half of the people in Alaska currently Ilive
under a simlar law. He noted a local election in Anchorage that
tried to overturn the snoke-free | aw and fail ed.

He summarized that 400 Alaskan businesses and organizations
representing all regions of the state have already signed on in
support of a statew de snoke-free workplace law. He referenced a
| arge anount of letters and e-mails in support of SB 209.

9:34: 55 AM

CHAI R DYSON stated that his reason for asking Senator M cciche
to explain the changes before the conmttee adopted the CS was
to make sure Senator Mcciche did not feel |ike he had to nake
some conprom se to get past the commttee. He asserted that he
can speak confidently for his colleague that the CS is pretty
fair. He encouraged Senator Mcciche to not nmke changes for
expedi ent reasons. He set forth that the conmttee w Il adopt
the CS if Senator Mcciche feels that the changes are good

policy.

SENATOR MCCICHE replied that the changes are based on a
di scussion that involved statew de stakeholders on contributing
to good governnent. He asserted that the changes are reasonable
and make SB 209 a better bill.

CHAI R DYSON recal l ed a previous discussion with Senator M cciche
that a significant reason for the bill was based on the
Unorgani zed and Second C ass boroughs not having the authority
to enact a snoke-free | aw

SENATOR M CCI CHE answered correct. He explained that nany of
Al aska's Second C ass Boroughs and the Unorganized Borough do
not have the jurisdiction for certain |legal power and one of
them is health. He said SB 209 allows these boroughs to have
health in their jurisdiction.

9:36:44 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2014



CHAI R DYSON asked what the process is for an unorgani zed area to
opt - out .

SENATOR M CCI CHE replied that opting out would be nore difficult
because the Al aska Legislature serves as the assenbly for the
Unorgani zed Borough. He surm sed that the Unorganized Borough
woul d have to work through the Al aska Legi slature and request an
opt-out after a vote.

9:37:26 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was any objection to accepting the CS
as the working docunent. Finding no objection, he announced that
version Cis the working docunent.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked for an explanation of the changes made in
version C.

SENATOR M CCI CHE answered that the first change allows an opt-
out option and the second renoves standal one tobacco-only shops
fromjurisdiction.

CHAI R DYSON asked Senator G essel if she was confortable wth
t he CS.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered yes.
CHAI R DYSON opened public testinony.

9:40: 00 AM

MARGE STONEKING Al aska Director, American Lung Association
(ALA), Anchorage, Alaska, said she also is testifying on behalf
of the Anerican Heart Association, Anerican Cancer Society,
American Association of Retired Persons (AARP) Al aska, and the
Al aska Native Health Board. She stated that each organization
represents thousands of Al askans on the issue of snoke-free air.
She said the organizations that she is testifying on behalf of
support SB 209 prior to the CS. She specified support for the
standal one tobacco shop and opposition for the opt-out
provi sion. She explained that the Lung Association's mssion is
to save lives by inproving lung health in preventing |ung
di sease. She pointed out the need to prevent the indoor-use of
e-cigarettes as well.

9:42:43 AM

DR. ROBERT URATA, MD., volunteer, American Heart Association
(AHA), Juneau, Al aska, noted that he is a famly physician and
has practiced nedicine since 1984. He noted that he has been an

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 3, 2014



AHA volunteer for the past 12 years. He stated that he is in
support of SB 209 and supports the inclusion of e-cigarettes in
the bill. He addressed the health problens with snoking and
poi nted out that passive snmoking can cause up to 50,000 deaths a
year in the US. He stated that even brief secondhand snopke
exposure can cause i medi ate and adverse effects such as a heart
attack. He pointed out that Pueblo, Colorado studied the effects
of snoke-free ordinances and noted an increase in food and
beverage (F&B) sales along with a reduction in heart attacks. He
noted an Institute of Social and Econom c Research (1SER) report
on the business inpact from a snoke-free indoor ordinance in
Anchorage that showed an increase in F& business. He said only
hal f of the Al aska population is covered by snoke-free workpl ace
|aw due to jurisdictional issues and that is the reason for a
request that state law provide protection. He said that e-
cigarettes should be included in SB 209 and provided scientific
evi dence. He summarized that SB 209 will inprove the health and
safety of all Al askans, both present and future generations.

9:46: 18 AM
ANGELA CARRCLL, owner, d acier Vapors, Palner, Al aska, asked if
t he vapor or "vape" shops will be included in the opt-out option

with the tobacco shops. She noted that vape shops typically get
i ncluded with tobacco and vape shops are not tobacco.

CHAIR DYSON stated that his guess is that vape shops are not
included. He said the conmttee will have the sponsor speak to
Ms. Carroll's question.

M5. CARROLL noted that the use of e-cigarettes was a way to
reduce nicotine intake.

9:49: 50 AM

BRI AN CATON, owner, Northern Lights Vapor Conpany, Anchorage,
Al aska, asked that SB 209 be anended to include an exenption for
st andal one vapor shops as well as standal one tobacco shops. He
pointed out that standalone vapor shops abide by the sane
criteria as tobacco shops where no mnors are present and
i ndi viduals enter of their own volition.

| SAAC HOWELL, owner, Cold Vapes 907, Anchorage, Al aska, stated
t hat standal one vape shops should be exenpted. He noted that bar
owners enjoy having people being able to conme in and "vape" who
normal |y woul d not cone into bars.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 3, 2014



CHAIR DYSON noted that he is hearing the word "vape" for the
first tine. He surmsed that the term "vape" nmeans an
establishment that dispenses e-cigarettes.

9:52:56 AM

LARRY HACKENM LLER, representative, Interior Cabaret, Hotel,
Restaurant & Retailers Association (ICHARR), Fairbanks, Al aska
refuted the scientific clains nade against secondhand snoke. He
noted that Fairbanks turned down an indoor snoking ban because
85 percent of restaurants were already non-snoking. He
summari zed that Fairbanks is a First Cass city that decided
that there were enough choices for non-snokers. He clained that
there is no hazard from secondhand snoke in the workpl ace.

9: 55: 54 AM

JILL LEWS, Deputy Director, Alaska Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services (DHSS), Division of Public Health (DPH), Juneau

Al aska, stated that she was at the neeting to address questions
that pertained to public health. She called attention to AS
18.35.356, the "public education piece." She noted that AS
18.35.356 is addressed in the bill's original version on page 6,
page 7 in the CS

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the Adm nistration supports the
bill.

MS. LEWS answered that the Admnistration has not taken a
posi tion.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the noted activities are things DHSS-
DPH is already doing: educati on prograns, el ectronically
publ i shed printabl e-brochure, etc.

M5. LEWS answered that to a large extent, the activities are
things that are being done currently by the grantees that DHSS-
DPH have that already work in the Tobacco Prevention and Control
Program and SB 209 would further expand the activities. She
noted that the current activities are locally focused and | oca
communities adopting snoke-free policies would be statew de
ori ent ed.

9:57:27 AM

CHAIR DYSON noted that finance and dollars are not M. Lew s

direct responsibility. He asked if she has any sense of what the
public health benefit and the inpact on public health cost m ght
be.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2014



M5. LEWS answered that DHSS-DPH has an indetermnate fiscal
note at this time. She explained that DHSS-DPH thinks that nost
of the public education could probably be absorbed within the
departnment's existing budgets. She said the signage could becone
an expense depending on what that turns out to be and that is
not clear at this time. She pointed out that the enforcenent
activities at this tine are listed as being under DHSS-DPH s
responsibility. She stated that DHSS-DPH currently does not have
the infrastructure or systens for enforcenent. She said DHSS- DPH
woul d need nore information to understand what enforcenent woul d
entail.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI noted that the previous testifier said he
did to believe secondhand snoke caused any injuries. He asked if
Ms. Lewis agreed with the previous statenment and, if not, if she
have a sense of how nuch secondhand snpbke costs the State of
Al aska in terns of Medicaid expenditures or other expenditures.

M5. LEWS answered that she did not have information on the
Medi cai d program costs at this tinme. She said DHSS-DPH has | ong
sai d that secondhand snoke i s dangerous.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she had any rough estimates of
what secondhand snoke m ght be costing the state.

M5. LEWS answered that she wll present information to the
conmittee at a |later date.

CHAI R DYSON asked how the non-snoking ordinances are currently
enforced and who goes around to check up on conpli ance.

M5. LEWS answered the Alaska Departnent of Environnental
Conservation (DEC).

CHAI R DYSON asked how DEC enforces the ordi nances.

M5. LEWS replied that she would have to defer to DEC to address
enf orcenent questi ons.

10: 00: 24 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nmany citations or infractions
have been alleged against people or businesses in Anchorage or
ot her communi ti es.

M5. LEW S answered that none have been given.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2014



CHAI R DYSON admitted to the difficulty in quantifying the inpact
from secondhand snoke. He remarked that the whole prem se that
| egi sl ators are working on banning snoking and banning snoking
in the workplace is better for people' s health. He added that
banning snoking is going to dimnish the cost to the public
coffers significantly if not profoundly over time. He said the
of fset of banning snoking is how nmuch noney will be required to
have sonebody running around to make sure the ban is conplied
with. He surm sed that non-snoking conpliance was |argely self-
pol i ced.

10: 02: 00 AM

TERRY SNYDER, Mat-Su Coordi nator, Anerican Cancer Society Cancer
Action Network, Palnmer, Alaska, proclainmed that there is huge
support for SB 209 by the Mit-Su from both businesses and
individuals. She referenced a letter from the Geater Palner
Chanber of Comerce that supports SB 209. She detailed that
voters in Palner passed a 2011 ballot initiative that nmade
snoking in public places within the city limts a violation. She
noted that the initiative was enacted by Palnmer in 2012. She
said Pal ner businesses were polled and an increase in comrerce
and a nore positive community outlook was noted due to the
snmoke-free ordi nance.

CHAI R DYSON asked what the current enforcenent for non-snoking
areas is and what would the inpact be for extending virtual
st atew de enforcenent.

10: 05: 40 AM

ELAI NE BUSSE FLOYD, Director, Division of Environnental Health,
Al aska Departnent of Environnental Conservation, Anchorage,
Al aska, responded that enforcement is a little bit difficult for
DEC due to the offense's nature. She noted that DEC does not
have citation issuing ability and a peace officer is required to
actually observe the snoker or violator and then be able to
issue a citation. She explained that DEC educates the public and
inforns affected business operators about their |egal obligation
to display signs. She added that DEC inspects public facilities
and restaurants, offers signs, notifies the person in charge on
requi renents, and records any failure on inspection reports.

CHAI R DYSON noted Senator Wel echowski's question regarding the
anount of citations that have been issued or actions taken
agai nst violators and asked particul arly about Anchorage.

MS. BUSSE FLOYD answered that she does not have an answer.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2014



CHAI R DYSON asked if she was aware of any citations that were
i ssued.

MS. BUSSE FLOYD answered that citations are enforced in snmll
clains court.

CHAIR DYSON asked if the non-snoking violation was a civil
action.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD answer ed yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the citation is initiated by a citizen who
has skin-in-the-gane and i s demandi ng conpli ance.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD answered correct. She explained that DEC
currently enforces the law as an education process on
conpliance. She sunmarized that public pressure and awareness
bri ngs about the conpliance.

10: 09: 04 AM

PHIL WELSH, Adm nistrator, Sitka Pioneer Honme, Al aska Pioneer
Hones (APH), Alaska Departnent of Health and Social Services,
Sitka, Al aska, introduced hinself.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if APH will be included in the prohibition
and if there will be an issue with residents.

MR. WELSH answered that there are a few snokers at each APH
home. He said the greatest effect from the bill wll be the
required di stance away fromthe hones.

10:11: 18 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if he currently has the authority to protect
the APH s guests, clients, and patients from secondhand snoke.

MR. VELSH replied that APH has had no policy about prohibiting
snoking. He said the feeling is that there are appropriate safe
guards in place at this tine.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there are any APH homes in Alaska's
Unor gani zed Borough or Second Class cities that cannot or do not
have a | ocal ordinances that would enpower APH to have a policy
with "teeth.™

MR, WVELSH answered that he did not know which APH hones are in
t he Unor gani zed Bor ough.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2014



10: 12: 56 AM

BETTY MACTAVI SH, representing herself, Kodiak, Al aska, stated
that she supports SB 209 for a snoke-free work environment. She
not ed secondhand snoke's negative inpact on Kodi ak's busi nesses.
She explained the dangers from e-cigarettes and secondhand
aer osol .

10: 15: 09 AM

JOHN PARKER, business owner, Kenai, Alaska, said SB 209 wll
“"level the playing field* for businesses so that everyone
benefits, i ncluding non-snokers. He noted a reason for
busi nesses that have not voluntarily gone to no-snoking as
foll ows:

Many | ocal hotels and bars are concerned about
‘leveling the playing field and they fear that if an
establi shnment goes snoke-free in their area, other
| ocal establishnments will reap the benefits.

He called attention to Kenai businesses that have prospered
since voluntarily going snoke-free in addition to increased
health and safety for their enployees.

He addressed an argunent against snoke-free environnents in
public places as foll ows:

The other argunment | often hear is that snokers have
the right to snoke. | agree, even though there is
irrefutable proof that snoking will radically shorten
your life. W often hear that if non-snokers don't
like cigarette snoke, they should go sonewhere else
As a non-snmoker, if ny wfe and | go into an

establishnment, we are not inposing our choices on
anyone. By conparison, when a snoker lights up in an
establishment which | am a patron of, they are
imposing their choices on nme, they do not have the
right to do that.

He sunmarized that SB 209 is legislation that is not ained at
limting snokers' rights. It is aimed at protecting the health
and safety of other Al askans.

10: 18: 18 AM

GARY SUPERMAN, business owner, Hunger Hut, N kiski, Al aska,
declared that studies from the U S. Environnental Protection
Agency (EPA), OSHA, and the U S. Congress questioned 100 percent
conpliance wth snoke-free areas. He asserted that from an

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2014



econoni ¢ st andpoi nt, hi s nei ghbor hood tavern woul d be
irreparably harned by SB 209. He explained that 90 percent of
his custoners and 100 percent of his bartenders snoke. He
remarked that the legislation is being shoved down business's
throats. He asked that the structural problenms w th enforcenent
be analyzed in SB 209 and a fiscal note be applied to the bill
to address enforcement issues.

10: 21: 28 AM
ANGELO REALE, owner, Reale Vapes, Wasilla, Alaska, stated that
SB 209 needs an anendnent to separate e-cigarettes from tobacco.

10: 23: 23 AM

ALLEN GRUNIN, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, said he
supports SB 209 to regulate snoking in Alaska. He noted that he
is a nmenber of the Al aska Native Veterans Association (ANVA). He
said ANVA has signed a resolution of support for SB 209. He
asserted that there is no right to snoke and asked for passage
of SB 209 to standup for the right to breathe clean air.

10: 25: 03 AM
CHAI R DYSON decl ared that the commttee will stand at ease.

10: 25: 32 AM
CHAI R DYSON called the comm ttee back to order

10: 25: 42 AM

M CHAEL PATTERSON, representing hinsel f, Juneau, Al aska, said he
supports SB 209 and expl ained his term nal nedical condition due
to snoking. He noted that he is traveling around the state and
speaki ng at schools to draw attention to the hazards of snoking.
He pointed out that over half of the area that he travels to in
the state is not protected. He said Anchorage and Fairbanks do
not have snoke-free laws in public areas.

10: 27: 31 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked if any of M. Patterson's exposure to
secondhand snoke was due to working in a place where people were
snoki ng.

MR. PATTERSON answered no. He added that he had a friend that
di ed from secondhand snpke.

CHAI R DYSON noted that Anchorage and Fairbanks do have the | ocal

authority to ban snoke if they wanted and would not be effected
by SB 209.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- April 3, 2014



He announced that SB 209 will be passed out of comittee if
there is no objection. He said he has a couple of suggested
amendnents, one of themhas to do with a senior and disabilities
pl ace where a person will have to go 50 feet away. He pointed
out that there may be a risk for requiring a senior or disabled
person to be outside in winter conditions. He said his second
anendnent pertains to vape shops. He remarked that both vape
shops and tobacco shops should be excluded. He said his
respectful suggestion to Senator Mcciche is to consider his
anendnents at the next conmttee of referral.

CHAI R DYSON announced that the Chair will entertain a notion.

10: 29: 12 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report the CS for SB 209, version 28-
LS1539\C, from conmttee wth individual recomendations and
attached fiscal note(s).

10: 29: 24 AM
CHAIR DYSON stated that seeing no objection, [CSSB 209(STA)]
noved out of the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

10: 30: 04 AM
There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Committee hearing
at 10:30 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- April 3, 2014



